
  

2011 
 

Minturn Council Meeting 
 

Wednesday September 7, 2011 
  
Work Session:    5:45pm 

    (Town Center) 
 
Regular Session:   6:30pm 

    (Town Center) 
 
 

TOP FIVE COUNCIL PRIORITIES: 
 Entry Signs 
 Sidewalk Installations 
 Street repairs with drainage (by priority) 
 100% completion of Telemetry 
 Implement Streetscape Plan 



Minturn Town Council  
August 17, 2011 
Page 1 of 3 

 
 

 
Agenda 

 
MEETING OF THE MINTURN TOWN COUNCIL 

Minturn Town Center, 302 Pine Street 
Minturn, CO 81645 • (970) 827-5645 

 
Wednesday September 7, 2011 

 
Work Session – 5:45pm 

Regular Session – 6:30pm 
 

MAYOR – Gordon “Hawkeye” Flaherty            TOWN MANAGER – Jim White   
MAYOR PRO TEM – George Brodin   TOWN CLERK/TREAS – Jay Brunvand 

 
COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

Shelley Bellm 
Earle Bidez 

Jerry Bumgarner 
Aggie Martinez 
John Rosenfeld 

 
When addressing the Council, please state your name and your address for the record prior to providing your 

comments. Please address the Council as a whole through the Mayor. All supporting documents are available for 
public review in the Town Offices – located at 302 Pine Street, Minturn CO 81645 – during regular business hours 

between 8:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding holidays. 
 

Work Session – 5:45pm 
 

 Work Session – Public Works and Water Quality Control Professionals update  – A. 
Martinez (45min) 

 
Regular Session – 6:30pm 

 
1. Call to Order 

a. Roll Call 
b. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
2. Approval of Agenda  

a. Items to be Pulled or Added 
 

3. Approval of Minutes and Action Report  
 August 17, 2011 

 

Jay.Brunvand
Typewritten Text
PG 1

Jay.Brunvand
Typewritten Text
PG 36



Minturn Town Council  
August 17, 2011 
Page 2 of 3 

 Action Item Report 
 

4. Public comments on items, which are NOT on the agenda (5 minute time limit per 
person) 

 
5. Special Presentations/Citizen Recognition 

 
6. Planning Department Update 

 
7. Town Manager’s Report  

 
8. Town Council Comments  

 
 
 
 
 

9. Discussion/Action –  Ordinance 10 - 2011 (Second Reading) an Ordinance granting 
and approving an Encroachment Agreement between the Minturn Towne Homes 
and the Town of Minturn – Cerimele (15min) 

 
10. Discussion/Action – Minturn Cemetery District – A request for a variance to drill a 

well to provide potable water to the Minturn Cemetery mausoleum and Town of 
Minturn Public Works Building – White/Cerimele (30min) 
  

11. Discussion/Action – Minturn Cemetery District – A request for a watershed permit 
to construct a sewage disposal system at the Minturn Cemetery – White/Cerimele 
(30min)  
 

12. Discussion/Action – A Proclamation of the Minturn Town Council of the Town of 
Minturn, Colorado in support of joining the National Monument of Remembrance 
of the 10th Anniversary of September 11th – White (5min)  

 
13. Discussion/Action – Update on items on the Town goals list – White (30min) 

 
 
 
 

14. Executive Session – Pursuant to CRS 24-6-402(4)(f) for the purposes of discussing 
the Town Manager’s annual review, Pursuant to CRS 24-6-402(4)(a) for the 
purposes to consult with the Town's Attorney(s) and receive direction regarding the 
negotiations of the USFS Boneyard property and Pursuant to CRS 24-6-402(4)(b) 
for the purposes to consult with the Town's Attorney(s) and receive direction 
regarding the negotiations of the Battle Mountain Resort property annexation, 
water right issues, and EPA update  – White/Christensen 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS AND DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

Jay.Brunvand
Typewritten Text
PG 42

Jay.Brunvand
Typewritten Text
PG 43

Jay.Brunvand
Typewritten Text
PG 48

Jay.Brunvand
Typewritten Text
PG 49

Jay.Brunvand
Typewritten Text
PG 67

Jay.Brunvand
Typewritten Text
PG 78

Jay.Brunvand
Typewritten Text

Jay.Brunvand
Typewritten Text
PG 87



Minturn Town Council  
August 17, 2011 
Page 3 of 3 

15. Executive Session – Action by Council or Direction to Staff as a result of the 
Executive Session (5min) 

 
 
 

 
16. Next Meeting – September 21, 2011  

 Work Session – 2012 Goal Setting – White (30min) Sept 21, 2011 
 Discussion/Action – Sidewalk Updated Report – White/A. Martinez (30min) 
 Discussion/Action – Special Events Update Report 

 
17. Future Meeting 

 Meeting: Discussion/Action – Resolution 4 – Series 2011 a Resolution approving a 
subdivision exemption plat for the Maloit Park Area – Cerimele (20min) 

 Meeting: Discussion/Action – Ordinance 9 – 2011 (First and Second Readings) an 
Ordinance allowing the sale of Medical Marijuana (TBA Meetings in January 2012 
45min, NOTE: this will require two readings) 

 Worksession: Request from the Planning Commission for a work session time during 
September with the Council to determine a sidewalk master plan.  

 Worksession: FY2012 Budget Review – 10/5/11 (45min)  
 Meeting: Discussion/Action – Council Action Item to formally accept the FY2012 

Budget – Brunvand/White 10/5/11 (10min) 
 Worksession: FY2012 Budget Work Session Retreat – Brunvand/White 10/19/11 

(45min)  
 Meeting: Discussion/Action – 1st Public Hearing on proposed fiscal year 2012 

Budget – review public funding requests – Brunvand/White 11/2/11 (45min)  
 Meeting: Discussion/Action – 2nd Public Hearing on proposed fiscal year 2012 

Budget and First Reading of Budget Ordinances – Brunvand/White  11/16/11 (45min) 
 Meeting: Discussion/Action – 2nd and Final Reading of proposed 2012 Budget 

Ordinances – Brunvand/White 12/7/11 (15min) 
 

18. Set Future Meeting Dates 
a) Council Meetings: 
 September 21, 2011 
 October 5, 2011 
 October 19, 2011 

 
b) Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings: 
 September 14, 2011 
 September 28, 2011 
 October 12, 2011 

 
   c) Other Dates: 

 
19. Adjournment  

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 



To
w

n 
of

 M
in

tu
rn

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 

20
11

 

1



W
TP

 D
ra

in
ag

e 
Is

su
es

 
B

ef
or

e 

2



W
TP

 D
ra

in
ag

e 
Is

su
es

 
G

ro
un

d 
w

at
er

 s
ee

pi
ng

 in
to

 
pl

an
t. 

P
ot

en
tia

l r
aw

 s
ur

fa
ce

 
w

at
er

 e
nt

er
in

g 
in

to
 c

le
ar

 
w

el
l. 

S
ol

ut
io

n:
 in

st
al

l d
ra

in
 p

ip
e,

 g
ut

te
r, 

ad
d 

ro
to

m
ill 

to
 to

p 
la

ye
r o

f s
oi

l t
o 

di
ve

rt 
w

at
er

 a
w

ay
 fr

om
 b

ui
ld

in
g.

 

3



   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 D

ra
in

   
  G

ut
te

r 

4



R
ot

om
ill

 

W
at

er
 fl

ow
in

g 
aw

ay
 

fro
m

 p
la

nt
. 

5



C
on

du
it 

to
 F

ilt
er

 #
3 

B
ui

ld
in

g 

C
on

du
it 

in
st

al
le

d 
to

 #
3 

bu
ild

in
g 

fo
r w

el
l a

nd
 v

al
ve

 c
on

tro
l w

ire
s.

 

 Th
re

e 
co

nd
ui

ts
 in

st
al

le
d 

fo
r 

an
y 

fu
tu

re
 u

pg
ra

de
s.

 

6



R
eb

ui
lt 

V
er

tic
al

 T
ur

bi
ne

 P
um

p 
#1

 

•
P

um
p 

#1
 b

ei
ng

 in
st

al
le

d.
 

•
Te

ch
ni

ci
an

s 
m

ak
in

g 
su

re
 

pu
m

p 
is

 p
lu

m
b.

 
•

P
um

p 
re

ad
y 

to
 g

o.
 

 

7



Tr
ea

tm
en

t P
la

nt
 G

ro
un

ds
 C

le
an

-U
p 

•
Lo

ad
in

g 
up

 s
cr

ap
 

m
et

al
. 

   
•

W
at

er
 P

la
nt

 g
ro

un
ds

 
ar

e 
cl

ea
r o

f s
cr

ap
 

m
et

al
 c

lu
tte

r. 

8



Tr
ea

tm
en

t P
la

nt
 G

ro
un

ds
 C

le
an

-U
p 

9



S
af

et
y 

•
Fi

rs
t A

id
 K

it 
•

Fi
re

 E
xt

in
gu

is
he

r 
•

E
ye

 W
as

h 
St

at
io

n 
•

R
ig

ht
 to

 k
no

w
 c

ha
rts

 
le

tti
ng

 p
er

so
nn

el
 

kn
ow

 w
ha

t c
he

m
ic

al
s 

ar
e 

on
-s

ite
. 

 

10



S
af

et
y 

•
C

he
m

ic
al

 p
la

ca
rd

s 
on

 
D

oo
r 

  
•

E
ye

w
as

h 
S

ta
tio

n 
N

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n 

11



A
lu

m
in

um
 C

le
ar

 W
el

l A
cc

es
s 

H
at

ch
 

•
A

lu
m

in
um

 b
ox

 
pr

ot
ec

ts
 c

le
ar

 w
el

l 
fro

m
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

co
nt

am
in

an
ts

. 
  

•
H

at
ch

 li
ds

 o
pe

n 
fo

r 
sa

m
pl

in
g 

an
d 

flo
w

 
m

on
ito

rin
g.

 

12



Fi
lte

r #
3 

S
an

d 
A

dd
iti

on
 

•
Fi

lte
r s

ili
ca

 s
an

d 
be

in
g 

in
st

al
le

d.
 

•
5 

to
ns

 o
f s

an
d 

w
as

 
ad

de
d 

af
te

r c
le

an
in

g.
 

 

13



R
ed

uc
ed

 S
lo

w
 S

an
d 

Fi
lte

r C
le

an
in

g 

•
Fi

lte
rs

 w
er

e 
be

in
g 

cl
ea

ne
d 

2 
to

 3
 ti

m
es

 p
er

 
ye

ar
. 

•
B

uy
 u

si
ng

 o
ur

 ri
gh

ts
 w

ith
 

w
el

ls
 #

3 
&

 #
4 

du
rin

g 
ru

n-
of

f w
e 

ar
e 

ex
te

nd
in

g 
th

e 
lif

e 
of

 th
e 

sa
nd

.  
•

Fi
lte

rs
 a

re
 n

ow
 o

nl
y 

cl
ea

ne
d 

on
ce

 p
er

 y
ea

r. 
•

Th
is

 is
 re

du
ci

ng
 ti

m
e 

an
d 

m
at

er
ia

l c
os

ts
 to

 th
e 

To
w

n.
 

14



N
ew

 A
na

ly
ze

rs
 

H
A

C
H

 T
ur

bi
di

ty
 

A
na

ly
ze

r 

H
ac

h 
C

L-
17

 
C

hl
or

in
e 

A
na

ly
ze

r 
In

st
ru

m
en

ta
tio

n 
th

at
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

es
 w

ith
 

ne
w

 S
C

A
D

A 
S

ys
te

m
 

M
al

oi
t P

ar
k 

Fl
ow

 
M

et
er

 

15



R
ed

lio
n 

S
C

A
D

A
 S

ys
te

m
 

16



C
ur

re
nt

 O
pe

ra
tio

na
l I

ss
ue

s 
•

M
ai

n 
ta

nk
 a

nd
 M

al
oi

t 
Ta

nk
 L

ev
el

 S
en

so
rs

 
ar

e 
on

ly
 re

ad
in

g 
in

te
rm

itt
en

tly
. 

 
•

O
rig

in
al

 ra
da

r l
ev

el
 

se
ns

or
s.

 B
ei

ng
 

re
pl

ac
ed

 th
e 

w
ee

k 
of

 
9-

19
-1

1 
w

ith
 n

ew
 

ul
tra

so
ni

c 
se

ns
or

s.
 

17



M
in

tu
rn

 D
is

tri
bu

tio
n 

S
ys

te
m

 

•
S

om
e 

hy
dr

an
ts

 a
re

 
to

o 
lo

w
. 

•
Fi

re
m

an
 h

av
e 

a 
ha

rd
 

tim
e 

op
en

in
g 

ca
ps

. 
•

H
ar

d 
fo

r l
oc

at
in

g 
in

 
th

e 
W

in
te

r. 
•

P
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 p
lo

w
s 

to
 

st
rik

e 
th

em
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

po
or

 v
is

ib
al

ity
. 

  

18



H
yd

ra
nt

 E
xt

en
si

on
 

•
N

ew
ly

 In
st

al
le

d 
•

B
et

te
r v

is
ib

ili
ty

 
•

E
as

ie
r a

cc
es

s 
•

E
as

ie
r f

or
 F

ire
m

an
. 

 

19



H
yd

ra
nt

 E
xt

en
si

on
s 

20



H
yd

ra
nt

 D
ef

en
de

rs
 

•
H

yd
ra

nt
 D

ef
en

de
r 

pr
ev

en
ts

 p
os

si
bl

e 
w

at
er

 th
ef

t a
t r

em
ot

e 
hy

dr
an

ts
. 

•
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t w
ill

 
cu

t l
oc

k 
du

rin
g 

em
er

ge
nc

y.
 

•
4 

In
st

al
le

d 
on

 m
os

t 
is

ol
at

ed
 h

yd
ra

nt
s 

21



D
is

tri
bu

tio
n 

Fl
us

hi
ng

 
•

An
nu

al
 fl

us
hi

ng
 o

f a
ll 

hy
dr

an
ts

 
is

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
by

 th
e 

A
W

W
A

. 
•

Fl
us

hi
ng

 li
ne

s 
re

m
ov

es
 

se
di

m
en

t t
ha

t c
an

 p
ot

en
tia

lly
 

ca
us

e 
va

lv
e 

da
m

ag
e.

 
•

Fl
us

hi
ng

 re
m

ov
es

 b
io

lo
gi

ca
l 

sl
im

es
 th

at
 c

an
 g

ro
w

 in
 th

e 
w

at
er

 li
ne

s.
 

•
Fl

us
hi

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
 is

 7
5%

 
co

m
pl

et
e 

fo
r t

he
 S

um
m

er
. 

N
or

th
 e

nd
 o

f t
ow

n 
ne

ed
s 

flu
sh

ed
. 

•
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
D

at
e 

M
id

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

1.
 

   

22



V
al

ve
 E

xe
rc

is
in

g 
 

23



R
oa

ds
 In

 N
ee

d 
of

 R
ep

ai
r 

 
•

1)
 P

in
e 

S
t. 

to
 N

or
m

an
 

A
ve

. 
   

•
2)

To
p 

of
 N

or
m

an
 A

ve
. 

24



R
oa

ds
 In

 N
ee

d 
of

 R
ep

ai
r 

 
•

3)
 E

ag
le

 S
t. 

by
 P

ar
k 

    
•

4)
 N

or
m

an
 A

ve
. o

n 
E

as
t s

id
e 

of
 H

w
y 

24
 

25



R
oa

ds
 In

 N
ee

d 
of

 R
ep

ai
r 

 5)
 M

an
n 

A
ve

. 
    6)

 T
op

 o
f N

el
so

n 
A

ve
. 

S
tre

et
 is

 u
n-

pa
ve

d.
 

   
   

 

26



W
ill

ia
m

s 
an

d 
N

el
so

n 
 

27



S
id

ew
al

k 
R

ep
ai

rs
 

28



S
id

ew
al

k 
R

ep
ai

rs
 

29



D
um

ps
te

r C
on

cr
et

e 
P

ad
 

30



R
iv

er
 B

an
k 

R
e-

en
fo

rc
em

en
t 

31



C
on

tin
ui

ng
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

•
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 

at
 T

he
 P

ub
lic

w
or

ks
 

S
ho

p.
 

•
C

re
w

 a
tte

nd
ed

 w
at

er
 

cl
as

se
s 

at
 th

e 
C

M
C

 
C

am
pu

s 
in

 L
ea

dv
ill

e 
fo

r T
ec

hn
ic

al
 W

at
er

 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 T
ra

in
in

g.
 

32



N
ew

 E
nt

ra
nc

e 
S

ig
n 

fo
r T

he
 T

ow
n 

33



N
ew

 E
nt

ra
nc

e 
S

ig
n 

fo
r T

he
 T

ow
n 

34



35



Minturn Town Council  
August 17, 2011 
Page 1 of 6 

 
 

 
Official Minutes 

 
MEETING OF THE MINTURN TOWN COUNCIL 

Minturn Town Center, 302 Pine Street 
Minturn, CO 81645 • (970) 827-5645 

 
Wednesday August 17, 2011 

 
Work Session – 6:00pm 

Regular Session – 6:30pm 
 

MAYOR – Gordon “Hawkeye” Flaherty            TOWN MANAGER – Jim White   
MAYOR PRO TEM – George Brodin   TOWN CLERK/TREAS – Jay Brunvand 

 
COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

Shelley Bellm 
Earle Bidez 

Jerry Bumgarner 
Aggie Martinez 
John Rosenfeld 

 
These minutes are formally submitted to the Town of Minturn Town Council for approval as the official written record of the 
proceedings at the identified Council Meeting.  Additionally, all Council meetings are tape-recorded and are available to the 

public for listening at the Town Center Offices from 8:30am – 2:00 pm, Monday through Friday, by contacting the Town Clerk at 
970/824-5645 302 Pine St. Minturn, CO 81645 

 
Work Session – 6:00pm 

 
 Discussion/Action – Inga Causey, Minturn Prosecuting Attorney – Hawkeye (15min) 

 
Regular Session – 6:30pm 

 
1. Call to Order 

a. Roll Call 
b. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Flaherty at 6:46 pm.  
 
Those present included: Mayor Hawkeye Flaherty, Mayor Pro Tem George Brodin, Council 
Members John Rosenfeld, Jerry Bumgarner and Earle Bidez. (Note: Shelley B. and Aggie 
Martinez were absent excused.) 
 

 

36



Minturn Town Council  
August 17, 2011 
Page 2 of 6 

Staff present: Town Attorney Allen Christensen, Treasurer/Clerk Jay Brunvand, and Deputy 
Clerk Michelle Metteer. 
 

2. Approval of Agenda  
a. Items to be Pulled or Added 

 
Motion by George B., second by Jerry B., to approve the agenda as presented; all voted in favor. 
(Note: Shelley B. and Aggie Martinez were absent excused.) 
 

3. Approval of Minutes and Action Report  
 August 3, 2011 
 Action Item Report 

 
Motion by George B., second by Jerry B., to approve the minutes as presented; all voted in favor. 
(Note: Shelley B. and Aggie Martinez were absent excused.) 
 

4. Public comments on items, which are NOT on the agenda (5 minute time limit per 
person) 

 
5. Special Presentations/Citizen Recognition 

 
Mayor Hawkeye Flaherty gave a special thanks and expression of graditude to Chief Lorenzo 
Martinez and Court Clerk Lisa Osborne for their work and assistance during the passing of long-
time Minturn resident Mr. Tito Eloy Montoya. 

 
6. Planning Department Update 

 
7. Town Manager’s Report  

 
XCEL Natural Gas Pipeline Project Continues! 
The XCEL Pipeline Project from Edwards to Minturn has restarted at the northern entrance to 
Minturn. XCEL plans to work six days, twelve hour days from 7am to 7pm. XCEL was made 
aware of Minturn’s Saturday weekly market. The Minturn section should take two to three weeks 
to complete per Jimmy Smith, project manager. Overall project completion is set for September 
15, 2011. With any questions, please call XCEL at 1-877-481-6380.   
 
Signage 
The signage for the south end of Minturn is under construction. In addition, we are planning for 
directional signage at Cemetery Bridge for the entrance to Little Beach Park. We will be working 
on access agreements or easements needed for the signs. 
 
Annual Review Information  
Information and a new form were provided for you as you prepare for the Town Manager’s 
annual review. I worked on the consolidation of multiple forms to create one that seemed to 
incorporate salient issues here in Minturn. Further discussion can be scheduled for the September 
7, 2011 meeting. 

37



Minturn Town Council  
August 17, 2011 
Page 3 of 6 

Maloit Park Water Tank 
Inspection of the Maloit Park water tank determined the need to make repairs. Public Works has 
secured two bids for the job. The plan would be to complete restoration of both the inside and 
outside of the tank. I met with a representative from the School District to discuss repairs and 
payment arrangements on this and other projects in Maloit Park.  
 
Bone Yard Parcel/USFS/OSAC 
On Monday evening, August 8, 2011, the Town staff made a formal presentation to the Eagle 
County Open Space Advisory Committee (OSAC) on the request for funding to purchase the 
Bone Yard property in Minturn. I also held meetings with the managers of the Towns of Vail and 
Avon. The Town of Avon provided a letter of support for our request. 
 
Sidewalk Replacement Plan 
Staff has completed three sidewalk projects already this summer and is checking with a resident 
to consider another potential project. Public Works is in the process of compiling a report for 
Town Council to be delivered at the September 7, 2011 Town Council meeting. 
 
Battle Mountain Update 
Current issues include pending lawsuits related to responses to the EPA, quiet title action, and 
legal challenges to the annexation agreement.  Our committee met on August 9, 2011. 
 
Budget Calendar 
The budget review at the Town Council level will begin next month. 
 
Colorado State Freight and Passenger Rail Plan Workshop 
The Colorado Department of Transportation is holding a series of workshops around the state to 
receive input from key stakeholders. I plan to attend the September 1, 2011 session in Alamosa. 
 
Vacation 
My wife and I will be away on vacation from August 15 through August 26th. Jay Brunvand will 
be the primary contact on August 15-19 and Aug 22-23. Chris Cerimele will be the primary 
contact from August 24-26, 2011. If you need to reach me, I will be able to receive e-mails and 
phone calls while I am away.  
 

8. Town Council Comments  
 
George B., gave an update from the most recent OSAC meeting including a written plan, a 
conservation easement ensuring the land remain open space, supporting matching funding, weed 
mitigation, and a few other requests to fulfill before approval of funding for the purchase of the 
Boneyard could move forward with approval. 
 
Hawkeye F., requested a work session with the Eagle County Sheriff to discuss jail fees. 
 
Hawkeye F., also reminded folks that school year will be starting soon and to be cautious of 
children on Highway 24 and bus stops. He stated as a reminder that there is a zero tolerance for 
violators of the school stop driving laws. 

38



Minturn Town Council  
August 17, 2011 
Page 4 of 6 

 
 
 
 

9. Discussion/Action – Wendy Naugle of the Colorado Dept of Public Health and 
Environment (30min) 
 

Wendy Naugle, Colorado Dept of Public Health and Environment came to present an update of 
the Eagle Mine Superfund Site. Mike Holmes and Warren Smith were also in attendance for 
introductions, questions and answers. 
 
Next Wednesday, August 24 at 1:00pm at the Edwards Ambulance Station there will be an Eagle 
Mine Stakeholder meeting. 
 
Mike Holmes will provide the Town of Minturn with a copy of the Audit Report given by the 
EPA to CBS Viacom. 

 
10. Discussion/Action – Resolution 5 – Series 2011 a Resolution concerning the issuance 

of Special Event Permits by the Town of Minturn Liquor Licensing Authority 
 
Motion by Jerry B., second by George B., to approve Resolution 5 – Series 2011 a Resolution 
concerning the issuance of Special Event Permits by the Town of Minturn Liquor Licensing 
Authority. All voted in favor. (Note: Shelley B. and Aggie Martinez were absent excused.) 
 
Council Member Shelley B., arrived at the Council meeting at 8:10pm. 
 
 
 

11. Pursuant to CRS 24-6-402(4)(f) for the purposes of discussing the Town Manager’s 
annual review, Pursuant to CRS 24-6-402(4)(a) for the purposes to consult with the 
Town's Attorney(s) and receive direction regarding the negotiations of the USFS 
Boneyard property and Pursuant to CRS 24-6-402(4)(b) for the purposes to consult 
with the Town's Attorney(s) and receive direction regarding the negotiations of the 
Battle Mountain Resort property annexation, water right issues, and EPA update  –
Christensen 

 
Motion by Jerry B., second by George B., to convene in Executive Session pursuant to CRS 24-
6-402(4)(f) for the purposes of discussing the Town Manager’s annual review, Pursuant to CRS 
24-6-402(4)(a) for the purposes to consult with the Town's Attorney(s) and receive direction 
regarding the negotiations of the USFS Boneyard property and Pursuant to CRS 24-6-402(4)(b) 
for the purposes to consult with the Town's Attorney(s) and receive direction regarding the 
negotiations of the Battle Mountain Resort property annexation, water right issues, and EPA 
update. All voted in favor. (Note: Aggie M., absent excused) 
 

12. Executive Session – Action by Council or Direction to Staff as a result of the 
Executive Session (5min) 

PUBLIC HEARINGS AND DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

39



Minturn Town Council  
August 17, 2011 
Page 5 of 6 

 
Adjourned Executive Session at 8:53 pm. 
 
Direction to Staff:  

 Town Council Members to bring their Individual Town Manager Reviews to the 
September 7, 2011 meeting. 

 Earle B and George B., to be absent for the September 7, 2011 meeting. 
 Town Manager, Jim White to complete the information request from the OSAC panel and 

to forward to Minturn Town Council with an update. 
 Town Manager and Town Attorney and Council Members Bidez and Bellm to meet with 

Battle Mountain Corporation on August 30, 2011 to continue negotiations.  
 

 
 

 
13. Next Meeting – September 7, 2011  

 Town Manager’s annual evaluation  
 Work Session - Discussion/update: Water Quality Control Professionals – White 

(30min)  
 Discussion/Action – Ordinance 10 - 2011 (Second Reading) an Ordinance granting 

and approving an Encroachment Agreement between the Minturn Towne Homes and 
the Town of Minturn – Cerimele (15min) 

 Discussion/Action – Sidewalk Update Report – White/A. Martinez (30min) 
 Discussion/Action – Update on items on the Town goals list – White (30min) 
 

14. Future Meeting 
 Work Session – 2012 Goal Setting – White (30min) Sept 21, 2011 
 Meeting: Discussion/Action – Resolution 4 – Series 2011 a Resolution approving a 

subdivision exemption plat for the Maloit Park Area – Cerimele (20min) 
 Meeting: Discussion/Action – Ordinance 9 – 2011 (First and Second Readings) an 

Ordinance allowing the sale of Medical Marijuana (TBA Meetings in January 2012 
45min, NOTE: this will require two readings) 

 Worksession: Request from the Planning Commission for a work session time during 
September with the Council to determine a sidewalk master plan.  

 
15. Set Future Meeting Dates 

a) Council Meetings: 
 September 7, 2011 
 September 21, 2011 
 October 5, 2011 

 
b) Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings: 
 August 24, 2011 
 September 14, 2011 
 September 28, 2011 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

40



Minturn Town Council  
August 17, 2011 
Page 6 of 6 

 
   c) Other Dates: 

 
16. Adjournment  

 
Motion by John R., second by Shelley B., to adjourn the meeting at 8:55 pm. All voted in favor. 
(Note: Aggie Martinez was absent excused.) 
 
 

 
_______________________________ 
Mayor Hawkeye Flaherty    
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Town Clerk, Jay Brunvand 

 

41



 T
ow

n 
of

 M
in

tu
rn

 
C

ou
nc

il 
A

ct
io

n 
It

em
 M

em
o 

 
 

T
O

: 
 

St
af

f M
em

be
rs

/C
ou

nc
il 

M
em

be
rs

 
FR

O
M

: 
Ji

m
 W

hi
te

/ T
ow

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

D
A

T
E

:  
   

   
   

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 7

, 2
01

1 
SU

B
JE

C
T

: 
St

at
us

 o
f A

ct
io

n 
Ite

m
s f

ro
m

 T
ow

n 
C

ou
nc

il 
M

ee
tin

gs
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

A
ct

io
n 

It
em

 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

Pa
rt

y 
Pr

og
re

ss
 R

ep
or

t 

To
w

n 
en

try
 si

gn
 –

 S
ou

th
  

W
hi

te
 

D
ire

ct
io

n 
fr

om
 7

/6
/1

1 
C

ou
nc

il 
M

ee
tin

g 
is

 to
 p

ro
ce

ed
 w

ith
 o

pt
io

ns
 fo

r a
 

si
gn

 w
ith

 a
 g

oa
l o

f 2
01

1 
in

st
al

la
tio

n.
 S

ig
n 

pr
op

os
al

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 is

 
be

in
g 

pr
od

uc
ed

 a
t H

ou
se

 o
f S

ig
ns

 

B
at

tle
 M

ou
nt

ai
n 

A
nn

ex
at

io
n 

Sc
ho

la
rs

hi
p 

Fu
nd

 
W

hi
te

 
Pu

rs
ue

 in
te

re
st

 m
on

ey
 fr

om
 B

at
tle

 M
ou

nt
ai

n 
sc

ho
la

rs
hi

p 
fu

nd
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

. 

M
in

tu
rn

 S
ch

ol
ar

sh
ip

 F
un

di
ng

 
W

hi
te

 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 in
te

re
st

ed
 in

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 se

ed
 m

on
ey

 a
nd

 so
lic

iti
ng

 d
on

at
io

ns
 

fo
r s

ch
ol

ar
sh

ip
 fu

nd
in

g.
 $

3,
60

0.
00

 re
ce

iv
ed

 fr
om

 B
at

tle
 M

ou
nt

ai
n 

on
 

8/
4/

20
11

. 

To
w

n 
Si

de
w

al
ks

 
A

. 
A

. M
ar

tin
ez

/W
hi

te
 

C
ou

nc
il 

re
qu

es
te

d 
a 

fu
ll 

up
da

te
 o

n 
th

e 
st

at
us

 o
f e

ac
h 

pr
io

rit
y 

to
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 w

/C
ou

nc
il 

on
 9

/7
/1

1 

To
w

n 
Pr

io
rit

y 
lis

t 
B

. 
W

hi
te

 
C

ou
nc

il 
re

qu
es

te
d 

at
 th

e 
7/

20
/1

1 
m

ee
tin

g 
fo

r a
 fu

ll 
up

da
te

 o
n 

th
e 

st
at

us
 o

f 
ea

ch
 p

rio
rit

y 
to

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 w
/C

ou
nc

il 
on

 9
/7

/1
1 

O
SA

C
 F

un
di

ng
 fo

r B
on

ey
ar

d 
pu

rc
ha

se
 

W
hi

te
 

C
ou

nc
il 

re
qu

es
te

d 
at

 th
e 

8/
17

/1
1 

m
ee

tin
g 

fo
r a

 fu
ll 

up
da

te
 o

n 
th

e 
st

at
us

 o
f 

al
l s

ub
m

is
si

on
s t

o 
O

SA
C

. 

 

42



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
To:  Mayor Flaherty and Minturn Town Council 
From:  Jim White, Town Manager 
Date:   September 1, 2011 
Re:   Manager’s Report for the September 7, 2011 Town Council Meeting 
 
 
 
XCEL Natural Gas Pipeline Project Continues! 
The XCEL Pipeline Project from Edwards to Minturn continues.  Jimmy Smith is project 
manager. Overall project completion has been extended now and is currently set for 
September 27, 2011. With any questions, please call XCEL at 1-877-481-6380.   
 
Maloit Park Water Tank 
Inspection of the Maloit Park water tank determined the need to make repairs. Public 
Works has secured two bids for the job. The plan would be to complete restoration of 
both the inside and outside of the tank. I met with a representative from the School 
District to discuss repairs and payment arrangements on this and other projects in 
Maloit Park. We are still awaiting a response from the School District regarding their 
review of the bids on the project. 
 
Bone Yard Parcel/OSAC 
On Monday evening, August 8, 2011, the Town staff made a formal presentation to the 
Eagle County Open Space Advisory Committee (OSAC) on the request for funding to 
purchase the Bone Yard property in Minturn. Though we were formally denied the 
funding, we received a preponderance of support verbally and were given several 
stipulations to pursue. We were encouraged to bring the project back when the 
recommendations were resolved, or improved. 
 
Sidewalk Replacement Plan 
Staff has completed three sidewalk projects already this summer and is checking with a 
resident to consider another potential project. Public Works is in the process of 
compiling a report for Town Council to be delivered at the September 21, 2011 Town 
Council meeting. Conversations with La Farge are in progress. 
 
Battle Mountain Update 
Current issues include pending lawsuits related to responses to the EPA, quiet title 
action, and legal challenges to the annexation agreement.  Our committee met on 
August 9, 2011, and again on August 30, 2011. 
 
 
 

Jim White 

 Town Manager 

P.O. Box 309  302 Pine Street 
Minturn, CO 81645 

Phone: 970-827-5645 

Fax: 970-827-5545 
Email: manager@minturn.org 

 
 
 

 

Town Council 

Mayor – Gordon “Hawkeye” Flaherty 

Mayor Pro Tem – George Brodin 
Councilmember – Shelley Bellm 

Councilmember – Earle Bidez 

Councilmember – Jerry Bumgarner 

Councilmember – Aggie Martinez 

Councilmember – John Rosenfeld 

 

43



9/2/2011 

 

Budget Calendar 
The budget review at the Town Council level will begin this month. Our Town 
Clerk/Treasurer indicated that he received the preliminary assessed valuation in August. 
Our collections for 2012 are estimated to be $443,000 which is $135,000 less than 
2011, or (-23%). Although this is a preliminary valuation, it is likely not to change much 
through the budget process as we anticipate revenues for 2012. 
 
Comcast 
Comcast is planning to digitize its cable system. Customers are being sent letters 
indicating what steps to take to make the transition occur with relative ease. Self-Install 
Kits (SIK) are being sent to customers upon request. Initial channel cuts are slated for 
October 1st, and final cuts are due on November 1st, 2011. On or about November 8th, 
new channels may be added. Without the new boxes installed, customers will lose 
many channels and only have basic channels.  
Residential boxes and business boxes and costs are described in the attached letters. 
Please review them for more details and contact information. 
 
Public Works Recycling Program 
The Public Works Department recently worked with Josh Thompson of Thompson 
Welding from Gypsum to cut up and recycle scrap metal that has been cluttering 
several public works storage sites, predominantly the water treatment facility site. The 
Town received $1179 for “mixed iron”. In addition, Thompson Welding provided welding 
repairs on some of our Town equipment. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Jim White 
Town Manager 

44



Get Ready for More Choice and 
More Control with XFINITY™. 
Order digital equipment for all your TVs  
to continue receiving all your channels.

 XFINITY service not available in all areas. Limited to residential customers receiving Expanded Basic service. Digital set-top box and remote required to 
receive On Demand and HD services. Access to HD channels requires an HD set-top box at an additional cost. QAM tuner TVs will continue to receive 
Limited Basic channels 2-23, 76 & 95 without a digital device. Pricing subject to change. Applicable equipment, installation, taxes and franchise fees 
extra. Comparison to Comcast’s offerings prior to network upgrades. Call for details. ©2011 Comcast. All rights reserved.

Dear John Q. Sample,

Soon Comcast will bring XFINITY to your neighborhood. Once complete, our network enhancement will bring you more  
choice, more control, more On Demand, more speed and more HD than ever before. To make sure you’re ready to enjoy 
Expanded Basic channels 19, 21 & 24-69 broadcast exclusively in digital format, you’ll need the right digital equipment for 
each TV in your home.

As a result of our network enhancement, any TV without a digital set top box will NOT receive expanded basic 
channels 24-75.
To receive all your current channels and more, order digital equipment for each TV in your home not connected to a digital  
set-top box. If you have a TV or other device that uses a CableCARD, no additional equipment is necessary for that TV.

You can receive one digital set-top box and up to two digital adapters at no additional monthly service charge. 
If you’d like additional digital devices, set-top boxes start at $2.50 per month, and digital adapters are $1.99 per month. Here’s 
what each digital equipment choice provides:

We’ll send your digital equipment to you in a simple self-install kit right to your home — there’s no shipping charge for one 
digital set-top box and/or two digital adapters, and you won’t have to pay installation charges (professional installation is  
available at an additional charge).  

Call us by October 11, 2011 to get your equipment, and you’ll be ready ahead of time!

Rich Jennings
Comcast Mile High Region, Senior Vice President

Unique Digital ID #: [XXXX-XXXX-XXXX-XXXX] 
Home Phone #: [XXX-XXX-XXXX]

For service at address:

[SERVICE ADDRESS LINE 1] 
[SERVICE ADDRESS LINE 2]

  Digital Device     What It Offers     Here’s How To Do It

•  Access to On Demand, Interactive 
Program Guide and more

•  Access to more channels than you 
currently receive, like Sprout, SyFy, 
NBC Weather Plus & Lifetime Movie 
Network

•  Crisp digital picture and sound

•  Crisp digital picture and sound for 
your Limited Basci channels

 ClICk Or CAll 
Click: comcast.com/digitalnow

Call: 1-800-COMCAST from your home phone.

Have your Unique ID # handy (located at the top 
of this letter).

 INSTAll
Connect the equipment to all your TVs without digital 
equipment, then “click or call” us to activate.

 THAT’S All
Enjoy all your current programming, plus more!

I

2

3

Digital Set-Top Box 

 Digital Adapter

Once your equipment is connected, you’ll be ready  
for XFINITY — only from Comcast. More choice. More  
control. More speed. And more HD than ever before.  

Click: comcast.com/digitalnow
Call from your home phone:  
1-800-COMCAST

John Q. Sample
123 Any Street
Apt. 1-A
Anytown, US 12345-6789

Customer action required by October 11, 2011

Avon_B2_Letter_1.indd   1 8/25/11   9:55 AM
45



Ready for XFINITY™?
To keep all your current channels — 
make sure you have the right
digital equipment for all of your TVs.

Inside:
n Check All of Your TVs

n Digital Channel Guide

XFINITY — more of the entertainment 
you want, when and how you want it.

Use this brochure to answer questions 
you have and to learn about the latest 
network upgrade taking place.

Your guide to Comcast’s latest  
network upgrade on:  
October 11, 2011

Click or Call. 
Install. That’s All.
comcast.com/digitalnow
1-800-XFINITY

B2NODIG_AvonVail_Letter2_Insert.indd   1 8/25/11   9:58 AM
46



Click or Call. Install. That’s All.
comcast.com/digitalnow  |  1-800-XFINITY
XFINITY service not available in all areas. Limited to residential customers receiving Expanded Basic service. Digital set-top box and remote required to receive On Demand services. 
QAM tuner TVs will continue to receive Limited Basic channels 2-23, 76 & 95 without a digital device. No additional equipment is necessary for TVs that use a CableCARD. Pricing 
subject to change. Applicable equipment, installation, taxes and franchise fees extra. Call for details. ©2011 Comcast. All rights reserved.

2 KWGN
4 KCNC (CBS)
5  Vail Valley 

Community TV

6 KRMA (PBS)
7 KMGH (ABC)
8 TV8
9 KUSA (NBC)

10 I-70 Live
11 KDEN (Telemundo)
12  KTVD (My Network 

TV)

13 KDVR (FOX)
14 Azteca America
16 Plum TV
17 Outside TV

18 Eagle County TV
19 KBDI - SD
20 KPXC (Ion)
22 KCEC (Univision)

23  The Discovery 
Channel

76 C-SPAN
95 WGN

119 Sprout
128 Bloomberg
136 G4
149 Movieplex

160 SyFy
164 Shop NBC
170 CSPAN2
180 Bravo

183 Style
236 KPJR - Church
238 KPJR - JCTV
239 KPJR - Smile

246 KMGH - Cool TV
247 KMGH - News
249 NBC Weather Plus

250  NBC Universal 
Sports

251 KBDI - DOC
252 KBDI - World

253 KDVR - Antenna TV
271  Investigation 

Discovery
504  Lifetime Movie 

Network

21 C-SPAN2
24 QVC
25 ESPN
26 ESPN2
27 ROOT SPORTS
28 Altitude
29 The Golf Channel
30 Disney Channel

31 ABC Family
32 Cartoon Network
33 Nickelodeon
34 TV Land
35 Hallmark Channel
36 truTV
37 The Learning Channel
38 Animal Planet

39 History Channel
40 A&E
41 Spike TV
42 The Weather Channel
43 CNN
44 CNN Headline News 
45 Fox News Channel
46 CNBC

47 MSNBC
48 USA
49 Lifetime
50 FX
51 Comedy Central
52 Versus
53 E!

54 Oxygen
55 Food Network
57 AMC
58 Turner Classic Movies
59 G4
60 MTV
61 VH-1

62 TNT
63 TBS Superstation
64 Telefutura
65 Travel Channel
67  Home Shopping 

Network
69 Galavision

These channels are unaffected by our network enhancement.

These channels will be available when you receive your new equipment.

The following channels will require a digital set-top box or adapter.

Digital Channel Guide
This chart shows the channels current customers receive with Comcast. If you are a new customer with digital set-top boxes, you may already receive the 
channels listed below.

Here’s the equipment

Digital set-top box

Digital adapter

No digital equipment

Here’s what it costs

n  If you do not currently have a digital 
set-top box, you may order one at no 
additional monthly service charge 

n  Additional digital set-top boxes start 
at $8.00 each per month

n  No additional monthly service charge 
for up to 2 adapters 

n  Additional adapters are $1.99 each 
per month

Here’s what you’ll receive

n  Access to On Demand, an Interactive Program Guide and more
n  All your current channels, plus channels only available through 

your set-top box (may differ depending on your package)
n  Crisp digital picture and sound on every TV

n  All your current channels. plus additional channels you don’t 
receive now, like Sprout, SyFy & NBC Weather Plus 

n Crisp digital picture and sound on every TV

n  Limited Basic channels 2-23, 76 & 95

Check all of your TVs
You’ll need to verify that all of your TVs are connected to a digital set-top box or digital adapter, or use a CableCARD™. If you 
still need equipment, you can receive one digital set-top box and up to two digital adapters at no additional monthly service charge. 
Without the right digital equipment, you may lose some of your current channels once the upgrade is complete. Here’s what 
each digital equipment choice provides:

B2NODIG_AvonVail_Letter2_Insert.indd   2 8/25/11   9:58 AM
47



 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 

 

AGENDA TITLE:    ORD 10 - 2011; An Ordinance granting and approving an 
encroachment agreement between the Minturn Towne Homes Home Owners’ Association 
and the Town of Minturn. 
 
MEETING DATE: September 7, 2011 

PRESENTER:  Chris Cerimele 

BACKGROUND:  This item is a request from the Minturn Towne Homes Owners’ 
Association for an encroachment agreement to allow the construction of a berm and 
drainage system on Town owned land known as Grant Ave.  The request was approved on 
first reading by the Town Council on July 22, 2011 but tabled at the August 10, 2011 
meeting.  At that time, the Town Council requested that the applicants explore alternative 
solutions that had less impact on the land. 
 
 
At the present time, the owners’ association is exploring alternative solutions with Marcin 
Engineering and are not ready to present to the Town Council.  
 
 
 
CORE ISSUES:  Extent of the impact on Town property.   

BUDGET/FINANCE IMPLICATIONS:  None.    

STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  Table the application until the September 21, 
2011 Town Council meeting. 

 
P.O. Box 309  302 Pine Street 

Minturn, CO 81645 
Phone: 970-827-5645 

Fax: 970-827-5545 
Email: manager@minturn.org 

 
 

Town Council 
Mayor – Gordon “Hawkeye” Flaherty 

Mayor Pro Tem – George Brodin 
Councilwoman – Shelley Bellm 
Councilman – Jerry Bumgarner 
Councilman – Aggie Martinez 
Councilwoman – Earle Bidez 

Councilman – John Rosenfeld 
 

48



     
 
 
 
 
 

Background 

The Minturn Cemetery District has devised a plan to provide potable water 

and sanitary sewer service to their recently constructed mausoleum building 

and the Town’s Public Works facility. The plan involves drilling a well and 

constructing a 6,000 gallon vault for waste disposal on Cemetery District 

property.  

 

TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
Town Council Staff Report 

Subject:  Minturn Cemetery District; A request for a variance to drill a well 
to provide potable water to the Minturn Cemetery mausoleum and Town 

of Minturn Public Works building    
Chris Cerimele, Town Planner 

HEARING DATE: September 7, 2011 
Staff Recommendation: approval 

Town of Minturn 
302 PINE STREET 

P. O. BOX 309, MINTURN, CO 81645 
(970) 827-5645   FAX (970) 827-5545  

 

Town Council 
MR. GORDON FLAHERTY, MAYOR 

MR. GEORGE BRODIN, MAYOR PRO TEM 
MRS. SHELLEY BELLM 

MR. JERRY BUMGARNER 
MR. AGGIE MARTINEZ 

MR. EARLE BIDEZ 
MR. JOHN ROSENFELD 

 

49



The Cemetery District was issued a well permit from the Colorado Division of 

Water Resources – Office of the State Engineer on June 2, 2011.  As stated in 

the well permit, the use of the well is limited to providing drinking water and 

sanitary facilities for the Cemetery District site (mausoleum) and the Town of 

Minturn Public Works building.  Water from the proposed well shall not be used 

for lawn or landscape irrigation or for any other purpose.  The permit stipulates 

that the annual amount of ground water to be diverted by the well shall not 

exceed 1/3 acre-feet (108,600 gallons). Jim McNeil, engineer of record and 

Cemetery District representative, estimated the total water usage for the 

Mausoleum and Public Works building to be 24,600 gallons per year.  This 

calculation was based on the following: 

Public Works Building 

Number of 
employees X 

Number 
of gallons 

per 
employee 

per day 

X 

Number 
of days 

employee 
works per 

year 

= 
Gallons 

per 
year 

5 X 15 X 255 = 19.125 

 

Mausoleum 

Number 
of 

customers 
per day 

X 

Number 
of gallons 

per 
customer 
per day 

X 

Number of 
days 

facility is 
open per 

year 

= Gallons 
per year 

1 X 15 X 365 = 5,475 

 

= Gallons 
per year 

= 24,600 
 

 

 

 

50



Issues 

Chapter 13 of the municipal code – Municipal Utilities – outlines the 

applicable regulations governing the Town’s water distribution system.  These 

regulations state that all consumers of water within the Town limits must 

connect to the Town’s water distribution system unless a variance is granted 

from the Town. The particular regulation is referenced in section 13.1.20- 

Exclusive authority of Town; exceptions 

 

(b) No water distribution system or consumer of water within the 

limits of the Town shall obtain water for distribution or consumption 

except from the Town and through the water distribution system of 

the Town, unless a variance is approved in writing. 

 

Analysis 

Construction of the well and associated water distribution lines will provide 

potable water for the mausoleum and Public Works building.  If the variance 

is granted for the water distribution system, the Cemetery District will connect 

the Public Works building to the well at no cost to the Town. This is a 

substantial benefit to the Town and should be taken into consideration while 

reviewing this request.   

Staff understands the reasoning for requiring a connection to the Town’s 

water distribution system.  It is important for the Town to receive connection 

fees and monthly service fees to help maintain the water distribution system.  

However, in this instance extenuating circumstances exist that make it cost 

prohibitive to connect to the main water distribution line in Highway 24.  

These include boring under the Union Pacific rail lines and Eagle River.    

 At a previous Town Council meeting when the proposed well was presented, 

Council was concerned whether the Eagle River Water and Sanitation District 

(ERWSD) would object to the proposal.  ERWSD has indicated that they have 

51



no issue with the proposed well and it is within the Town’s authority whether 

to approve or deny the Cemetery District’s request.  

 

Recommendation 

 Staff recommends approval of the Minturn Cemetery District’s request for a 

variance for the proposed well system. 

 

 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Chris Cerimele, Town Planner 
 
Attachments: 
Well permit application 
State issued well permit 
 

52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66

Jay.Brunvand
Typewritten Text



     
 
 
 
 
 

Background 

The Minturn Cemetery District is seeking approval for the construction of a well 

and waste disposal system on Cemetery District Property. Private waste 

disposal systems are prohibited in the Town of Minturn unless a watershed 

permit is granted by the Town. 

 

 

TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
Town Council Staff Report 

Subject:  A request by the Minturn Cemetery District for a watershed permit 
to construct a sewage disposal system.    

Chris Cerimele, Town Planner 
HEARING DATE: September 7, 2011 
Staff Recommendation: approval 

Town of Minturn 
302 PINE STREET 

P. O. BOX 309, MINTURN, CO 81645 
(970) 827-5645   FAX (970) 827-5545  

 

Town Council 
MR. GORDON FLAHERTY, MAYOR 

MR. GEORGE BRODIN, MAYOR PRO TEM 
MRS. SHELLEY BELLM 

MR. JERRY BUMGARNER 
MR. AGGIE MARTINEZ 

MR. EARLE BIDEZ 
MR. JOHN ROSENFELD 

67

Jay.Brunvand
Typewritten Text

Jay.Brunvand
Typewritten Text



The Cemetery District is proposing to construct a 6,000 gallon holding tank for 

waste disposal.  The tank will be monitored by a float system inside the vault that 

will signal an alarm when the system needs to be pumped.  All maintenance of 

the system will be the responsibility of the Minturn Cemetery District.  This system 

differs from the originally proposed traditional septic system in that there will be 

no leach field and all waste will be periodically pumped from the storage vault. 

Issues 

Waste disposal systems are not permitted within the Town limits unless a 

watershed permit has been issued by the Town.  This regulation is found in 

section 13.6.50 of the MMC. 

13.6.50 – Prohibited Activity, permitted activity and notice of other 

activity states: 

(a) It is unlawful for any person to engage in any of the following 

activities within the watershed, which the Town Council finds pose a 

risk to the water supplies or waterworks, unless such person, prior to 

undertaking such activity, obtains a watershed permit for such 

activity under the provisions of the Article: 

 

1. Constructing a sewage disposal system 

 

Analysis 

Section 13.6.60-B(2) of the Minturn Municipal Code states the following in 

regards to the review of a watershed permit application: In undertaking the 

analysis of any proposed activity, the following factors, among any others that 

may be deemed relevant shall be considered: 

 

a) The nature and extent of the proposed activity; 

b) The proximity to existing water courses; 

c) Drainage and erosion patterns and control measures; 

68



d) Soil criteria; 

e) Slope steepness and stability; 

f) Effects of the proposed activity and denudation; 

g) Geologic hazards, including but not limited to avalanche paths, 

floodplains, high water tables, fault zones and similar factors; 

h) Point source discharges and emissions into air and water; 

i) Ambient and nonpoint source emissions into air and water; 

j) Vehicular and motorized activity; and 

k) Fire hazard. 

 

Staff believes that the proposed holding tank will pose no threat to the 

waterways or water distribution system of the Town.  As stated in the watershed 

permit application, the holding tank will be installed at a depth of 8 ft. and have 

approximately 7 ft. of ground cover over the top of the vault.  Furthermore, the 

inside and outside of the tank will have a bituminous coating to prevent the 

possibility of groundwater intrusion  or the leaking of sanitary sewer effluent to 

the surrounding ground.   

 

Jim McNeil of Alpine Engineering has concluded the following in respect to the 

proposed waste disposal system: 

 

Combined wastewater flows from the mausoleum and the Public Works building 

have been estimated at 75 gallons per day or 0.0003 cfs.  It is highly unlikely that 

such a minor wastewater flow would even reach a connection point with the 

Town’s systems; there is simply not enough effluent to establish a self-cleansing 

velocity of 2 feet per second. 

 

Given the above considerations and given the sensitive environmental concerns 

at the cemetery, Alpine Engineering is recommending the installation of a 6,000 

gallon holding tank. 

 

69



Colorado and County regulations require that a permit be issued by the 

Environmental Health Office before a property owner constructs or repairs a 

septic system.   Town staff has coordinated with the Eagle County Department 

of Environmental Health in reviewing the Cemetery District’s request for the 

waste disposal system.  They have concluded that a storage vault is preferable 

to a traditional septic system.  In addition, Eagle County Department of 

Environmental Health has indicated that they would not issue a permit for the 

waste disposal system before the Town issues a watershed permit and detailed 

plans of the system have been submitted and approved by the Eagle County 

Department of Environmental Health. 

 
At the current time, the proposed well and septic system is the only feasible 

option for providing water and sewer service to the mausoleum and Public 

Works building.  While it is not in the public interest to support the proliferation of 

private wells and waste disposal systems, the Cemetery District is in a unique 

position that necessitates these solutions.   

 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends approval of the watershed permit with the following 
conditions: 
 

 All maintenance of the sewage disposal system shall be at the sole 
expense and responsibility of the Minturn Cemetery District; and 
 

 The Minturn Cemetery District shall hook up to the Town of Minturn water 
distribution system and Eagle River Water and Sanitation Sewer system 
within 12 months of these facilities being installed in the area. 

 
 

 
________________________________ 
Chris Cerimele, Town Planner 
 
Attachments: 
Watershed permit application 
Site Plan 
Correspondence from the Eagle County Department of Environmental Health 
 

70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77

Jay.Brunvand
Typewritten Text



78

Jay.Brunvand
Typewritten Text

Jay.Brunvand
Typewritten Text



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



U:\My Documents\MEMO-EXECUTIVE SESSION.doc 

 
FROM THE DESK OF 

JAY BRUNVAND, TREASURER/FINANCE 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:    Minturn Town Council 
FROM: Jay Brunvand, Treasurer/Clerk 
CC:   
DATE:  Friday, September 02, 2011 
RE:   Executive Session 
 
At the Council meeting, Council will need to convene in Executive Session with the 
Attorney to discuss the USFS Boneyard and issues regarding Battle Mountain Resort and 
to discuss the Town Manger’s annual review. The following motion is recommended: 
 
“Recommended motion: “I move to convene in Executive Pursuant to CRS 24-6-
402(4)(a) for the purposes to consult with the Town's Attorney(s) and receive direction 
regarding the negotiations of the USFS Boneyard property and Pursuant to CRS 24-6-
402(4)(b) for the purposes to consult with the Town's Attorney(s) and receive direction 
regarding the negotiations of the Battle Mountain Resort property annexation, water 
right issues, and EPA update and pursuant to CRS 24-6-402(4)(a) for the purpose of 
discussing the Town Manger’s annual review.” 
 

The Mayor will announce for the record if any decision is to be made as a result of the 
Executive Session once the Regular Session meeting reconvenes. 
 
Please contact me in the event you have any questions. 
 
Thank You, Jay 

TOWN OF MINTURN 
P.O. Box 309 (302 Pine Street) 
Minturn, Colorado 81645-0309 

970-827-5645 Fax: 970-827-5545 
treasurer@minturn.org 

_________________________________________________________________________   

87


	Minturn Cemetery District variance request staff report.pdf
	Town Council




